UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
WASHINGTON, D. C.

IN THE MATTER OF

K. 0. Manufacturing, Inc. : Docket Number:
Springfield, Missouri EPCRA-VII-89-T-611

X3

Respondent

Emergency Planning and Right to Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 11001
et seq. Sections 313 and 325, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11023 and 11045.

1. Respondent is not liable for failure to file a reporting
form ("Form R") for 2-Butyoxyethanol, inasmuch as the regulation in
question, 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, did not give adequate notice that the
use of such chemical had to be reported pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §
372.30(a).

2. Where respondent’s construction of a regulation differs
from complainant’s, and does not render any portion of the
regulation superfluous or meaningless, respondent may not be held
liable for failing to know what construction the enforcing
authority places upon the regulation. This is particularly true
where, as here, the wording of the regulation on its face equally
if not more probably supports respondent’s construction over
complainant’s, and where respondent relied contemporaneously upon
its own interpretation.

Appearances:

Kent Johnson, Esquire, Assistant Regional Counsel, Office of
Regional Counsel, U. S. Environmental Protection Agency,
726 Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101, for

complainant.

Michael K. Cully, Esquire, Lowther, Johnson, Joyner, Lowther,
Cully & Housley, 300 John Q. Hammons Parkway, Suite 800,
Springfield, Missouri 65806, for respondent.

BEFORE: J. F. Greene, Administrative Law Judge

Decided: February 28, 1993



DECISION AND ORDER
GRANTING RESPONDENT'’S MOTION FOR "ACCELERATED DECISION"

and DENYING COMPLAINANT’S MOTION

This matter arises wunder 42 U.S.C. §11001 et seqg., the
Emergency Planning and Right to Know Act of 1986 ("the Act", or
"EPCRA"), and is an administrative action for the assessment of
civil penalties brought pursuant to Section 325 thereof, [42 U.S.C.
§11045], for violations of the Act and regulations promulgated at
40 C.F.R. Part 372 pursuant to authority.

Specifically, the complaint charges that respondent failed to
submit a toxic chemical release inventory form ("Form R") for 2-
Butyoxyethanol, a glycol ether compound utilized in its detergent
manufacturing business, to the Administrator of the U. S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and to the State of Kansas by
July 1, 1988, in violation of Section 313 of the Act (42 U. S.C.
§11023) and 40 C.F.R. §372.30(a).! Complainant proposes a civil

penalty of $5,000.00 for the alleged infraction.?

' 40 CFR §372.30(a) provides in pertinent part as follows:

For each toxic chemical known by the

owner or operator to be manufactured
(including imported), processed, or other-
wise used in excess of an applicable thresh-
old quantity in § 372.25 at its covered
facility described in § 372.22 for a cal-
endar year, the owner or operator must sub-
mit to EPA and to the State in which the
facility is located a completed EPA Form R

. . . in accordance with the instructions in
Subpart E.

? Complaint at 3.



In its answer to the complaint, respondent admitted that it
had not filed a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol by July 1, 1988; denied
that glycol ether compounds are toxic chemicals;? and stated
raffirmatively . . . that it had no . . . duty or obligation to
submit a toxic chemical release inventory (Form R) for 2-
Butyoxyethanol to the Administrator of EPA and certainly had no
such duty with respect to the State of Kansas . . . . "¢
Respondent pointed out that it "voluntarily did file" a Form R for
2-Butyoxyethanol "once it was requested to do so."’ Respondent
further stated in its answer that it would contest the issue of
whether the failure to submit a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol by July
1, 1988, was a violation of Section 313 and 40 C.F.R. Part 372
because: (1) the "best data available to Respondent for the
reporting year 1987 indicated that filing was not required;" (2)
respondent’s supplier [Chem Tech Industries, Inc.] had advised that
filing was not required;" (3) EPA personnel and the hot-line
expressed confusion over whether 2-Butyoxyethanol was required to
be reported for 1987; (4) the EPA instruction booklet was
ambiguous, confusing, misleading, and, "taken and read together"
did not require respondent to file. Further, according to

respondent, the EPA instruction booklet for 1987 reporting advised

} Answer to the Complaint, ¥ 12 at 2, and ¥ 19(e) at 3, Cf.
§ of the complaint, at 2.

4 1d4. § 13.

5 Id.



that "CAS |[Chemical Abstract Service Registry] numbers for
chemicals required [to be reported] under Section 313 are cross-
referenced with an alphabetical list of trade names and chemical
names in Table III of the instructions," but 2-Butyoxyethanol --
which has a CAS number -- was not so cross-referenced and not
listed with the alphabetical 1list of trade names and chemical
names. However, respondent states, other members of the glycol
ether family which are toxic and do have CAS numbers were
specifically listed in Table III by name and cross-referenced by
CAS number.$,’

Complainant’s memorandum argues in effect that 2-Buty-
oxyethanol (referred to as "EB" in the parties’ memorandums) had to
be reported even though it was not listed specifically at 40 C.F.R.
§§ 372.45(a) by name or cross-referenced in § 372.45(b) by CAS
number in the list of chemicals for which reporting was required,
because it is a glycol ether. "Glycol ethers" are a "category" of
chemicals that, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 372.65(c), must be
reported. Complainant argues further that respondent’s construction

of the regulation would render section 372.65(c) superfluous or

¢ Answer, § 19 at 3.

7 Table III appears in certain materials distributed by EPA to
assist the regulated community in understanding its responsibil-
ities under the then-new Act. When the regulations were published
in final form, it became 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, which is the reference
used herein. Section 372.65(a) is the 1list of reportable chemicals
by name; section 372.65(b) is a list of the same chemicals by CAS
number order, starting with the lowest number. Section 372.65c is
a list of chemical categories.



meaningless. [Section 372.65(c) contains the list of "chemical
categories" for which reporting is required].

The parties were unable to resolve the issue of respondent’s
liability for failure to file the Form R and made pretrial exchange
according to schedule. Stipulations were filed and the matter set
for trial. Thereafter, the parties each moved for "accelerated
decision, " and the trial was continued pending resolution of the
motions. The sole issue presented for determination is whether the
regulations gave fair or adequate notice of EPA’s intention that
the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol had to be reported.

Summary judgment is warranted only if the pleadings, answers
to interrogatories, admissions, affidavits, and other material
submitted by the parties demonstrate that genuine issues of
material fact are absent and that the case may be resolved as a
matter of law. Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, 477 U.S. 242 (1986).
Here the parties agree that the motions raise only questions of law
and that liability may be resolved on that basis. The
regulation which governs this matter provides as follows in
pertinent part:

Subpart D - SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS, § 372.65 --

Chemicals and chemical categories to which this

part applies.

The reporting requirements of this Part apply

to the following chemicals and chemical cate-
gories. This section contains three listings.
Paragraph (a) of this section is an alphabetical
order listing of those chemicals that have an
associated Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Regis-
try number. Paragraph (b) of this section contains
a CAS number order list of the same chemicals listed

5



in paragraph (a) of this section. Paragraph (c¢) of
this section contains the chemical categories for
which reporting is required. These chemical cate-
gories are listed in alphabetical order and do not

have CAS numbers. Each listing identifies the effective
date for reporting under § 372.30. 3

(2) Alphabetical listing.

Acetaldehyde .............. 75-07-0 1/01/87
Acetamide........ ... 60-35-5 1/01/87
§-VoT-) oo} o L= 67-64-1 1/01/87
Acetonitrile........cc..... 75-05-8 1/01/87
2-Acetylaminofluorene...... 53-96-3 1/01/87

[The names of over 300 additional chemicals follow,
listed alphabetically with CAS numbers and
effective reporting dates.]’

(b) CAS Number listing.

50-00-0....Formaldehyde 1/01/87
51-28-5....2,3 Dinitrophenol 1/01/87
51-75-2....Nitrogen mustard [2-Chloro-

N- (2-chloroethyl) -N-methyl -

ethanamine 1/01/87
51-79-6....Urethane (Ethyl carbamate) 1/01/87
52-68-6....Trichlorfon . . . 1/01/87

[The names of over 300 additional chemicals
follow, listed in order of CAS number].

(c) Chemical cateqgories in alphabetical order. . .

Paragraph (c) contains about 20 chemical categories, listed

alphabetically, including "glycol ethers."

The language of the opening paragraph of section 372.65 shows

! The proposed rule appeared at 52 Federal Register, No. 107
at 21152, June 4, 1987. The final rule was published at 53 Federal

Register 4500 on February 16, 1988, with certain differences not
relevant here.

® See Appendix attached to this decision.
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why the parties differ vigorously in their interpretations. The
listings in paragraphs (a), (b), and (c) contribute further to the
problem. This regulation is an example of the difficulties

encountered in producing lengthy and detailed implementing
regulations in a relatively short time in connection with a new
statute. Respondent bases its interpretation in part upon the

language set out below in bold type, starting with its title:

Subpart D - SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS
Chemicals and chemical categories to which this part
applies.

The reporting requirements of this Part apply

to the following chemicals and chemical categories.
This section contains three listings. Paragraph (a)
of this section is an alphabetical order listing of
those chemicals that have an assocliated Chemical Abstract
Service (CAS) Registry number. Paragraph (b) of this
section contains a CAS number order list of the same
chemicals listed in paragraph (a) of this section.
Paragraph (c) of this section contains the chemical
categories for which reporting is required. These
chemical categories are listed in alphabetical order
and do not have CAS numbers. Each listing identifies

the effective date for reporting under § 372.30.

Bearing in mind that this section purports to list chemicals which



have to be reported, respondent concluded from the language here

and from the absence of 2-Butyoxyethanol in the paragraph (a)
listings, that the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol did not have to be
reported. Respondent was fortified in its reading by the presence
in the paragraph (a) and (b) listings of other glycol ethers which
have CAS numbers. It is clear, too, why respondent concluded that
the chemical categories listing [paragraph (c) of section 372.65]
was intended to cover chemicals that did not have CAS numbers but
were to be reported. Such chemicals obviously could not be listed
in paragraphs (a) and (b). Since there are glycol ethers that do
not have CAS numbers, and would be covered by paragraph (c), the
appearance of "glycol ethers" in the "categories" list does not
create an ambiguity or a warning that respondent was, in EPA’S
view, on the wrong track. The evidence in complainant’s pretrial
exchange indicates that respondent had arrived at its
interpretation contemporaneously, not simply in defense to the
complaint.!® Further, although reliance of a respondent upon its
chemicals supplier’s opinion of the meaning of a regulétion would
seldom be considered helpful to a defense, in these circumstances
the supplier’s view that 2-Butyoxyethanol did not have to be
reported simply suggests that other readers could read section

372.65(a), (b), and (c) (as well as certain other materials

1 See complainant’s exhibit 1 to pretrial exchange, wherein
the EPA inspector reports at 2-3 respondent’s explanation (on
September 11, 1989) of why it did not file a Form R for 1987 usage
of 2-Butyoxyethanol.



published by way of explanation and guidance) in the same way
as did respondent.?
Complainant bases its interpretation in part upon the language

of section 372.65 set out below in bold type:
Subpart D- SPECIFIC TOXIC CHEMICAL LISTINGS
Chemicals and chemical categories to which this
part applies.
The reporting requirements of this Part apply
to the following chemicals and chemical cate-
gories. This section contains three listings.
Paragraph (a) Qf this section is an alphabetical
order listing of those chemicals that have an
associated Chemical Abstract Service (CAS) Regis-
try number. Paragraph (b) of this section
contains a CAS number order list of the same
chemicals listed in paragraph (a) of this section.
Paragraph (c) of this section contains the chem-
ical categories for which reporting is required.
These chemical categories are listed in alpha-
betical order and do not have CAS numbers. Each
listing identifies the effective date for report-

ing under § 372.30.

" See discussion of certain materials at pages 16-17, infra.

2 gee affidavit of Mr. Phil Padron, who is the chemist and
Safety Officer for respondent, which appears as attachment 1 to
respondent’s Memorandum in Support of Respondent’s Motion for
Accelerated Decision and in Opposition to Complainant’s Motion for
Partial Accelerated Decision.



Complainant urges that respondent’s interpretation is not
valid because it would render useless or meaningless the "chemical
categories" listing in paragraph (c). This argument reflects the
principle of statutory construction that requires a presumption'
that every provision of a statute® has a purpose, such that the
statute must be construed to give effect to each of its provisions.
This principle, ut res magin valeat guam pereat, is well known and
is commonly applied. DeSisto College v. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills,
706 F. Supp. 1479, 1495 (M. D. Fla. 1989); Sutherland Stat. Constr.
Section 46.06 (4th Ed.). However, respondent’s interpretation does
not render paragraph (c¢) superfluous or meaningless. As has been
noted above, respondent reads paragraph (c¢) as requiring the
reporting of chemicals in those categories that do not have CAS
Registry numbers. Such chemicals, including the glycol ethers that
do not have CAS numbers,! could not be listed in paragraph (a) and
cross-listed in paragraph (b). Hence, a "chemical categories" list
was needed in order to make such chemicals reportable.

Another principle of statutory interpretation is useful in

these circumstances: expressio unius est exclusion alterius, that

the mention of one thing implies the exclusion of another. DeSisto

B When a regulation is legislative in character, rules of
construction applicable to statutory construction should be used in
determining its meaning. Sutherland Stat. Const., Section 46.06
(4ath E4.).

¥ See Respondent’s Memorandum at 6, and the affidavit of Mr.
Padron (Attachment 1 thereto): 2 Ethylbutylglycol and 2 Ethylbutyl
Acetate do not have CAS Registry numbers.
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College v. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, supra, at 1495. Here, where
no explanation appears in the record -- not to mention in the
regulation itself -- for the listing of some CAS Registry numbered
glycol ethers’ in paragraphs (a) and (b) but not others, this
principle has clear and logical application.

In the absence of warning signs, and nothing that complainant
raises in this connection can really be so viewed, or reasons why
respondent should have been alerted to the danger of the
construction which it did make, respondent cannot be held liable
for failing to act in accordance with other ©possible
interpretations. Neither should respondent be held liable for not
making a protective filing even if it can be argued that it should

have considered an alternative construction.!¢

5 1d. 2-Methoxyethanol ("EM") and 2-Ethoxyethanol ("EE") are
glycol ethers and have CAS Registry numbers 109-86-4 and 110-80-5.
They are listed by name in paragraph (a) of 40 C.F.R. § 372.65 and
cross-listed in paragraph (b) by CAS number.

16 At some point in the further progress of this case, if there
is any, it will no doubt be argued that respondent could not
possibly have really believed that only the few glycol ethers
listed alphabetically and by CAS number were reportable, and/or
that since respondent was sophisticated enough to know there are
glycol ethers without CAS numbers, then it must also have reasoned
that there must have been gome explanation as to why all of the
glycol ethers that have CAS numbers were not listed. Whatever the
reason why some but not others were listed, when all were intended
to be reported, it does not appear in this record. Further, any
finding relating to a lack of credibility on respondent’s part,
which would be implicit in the imposition of liability based upon
respondent’s supposed sophistication, cannot be made on this
record. It is noted that complainant’s exhibit 1 in pretrial
exchange (report of the September 11, 1989, inspection of
respondent’'s facility at 2) records that respondent did not think
that 2-Butyoxyethanol was regarded as "that toxic." This belief was
consistent with the fact that 2-Butyoxyethanol was not specifically
listed.

11



Respondent relies not just upon the language of section 372.65
and the absence of 2-Butyoxyethanol from the paragraph (a) and (b)
listings,! but also upon certain EPA documents which offer support
for respondent’s position. A document entitled Toxic Chemical
Release Inventory Reporting Form R and Instructions, Section 313 of
the Emergency Planning and Right-To-Know Act, issued March, 1988,

from the EPA Office of Toxic Substances! states as follows:

PART III. CHEMICAL SPECIFIC INFORMATION

. . . 1.2 CAS Registry Number
You must enter the Chemical Abstracts Service
(CAS) registry number that apears in Table III
on page 28 for the chemical being reported. . . .
If you are reporting one of the chemical categories
in Table III (c) of the rule (e.g. copper
compounds), enter [N/A] in the CAS number space.
CAS numbers for chemicals required under section
313 are cross referenced with an alphabetical list
of trade names and chemical names in Table III of
these instructions and section 372.65 of the rule.

(Emphasis added).

7 Complainant states that respondent’s interpretation "turns
[only] upon its interprettion of the listings of the chemicals
required to be reported." Complainant’s Memorandum in Support of
Motion for Partial Accelerated Decision, at 5.

¥ This document was submitted as respondent’s exhibit 1 in
pretrial exchange.

12



This instruction, in addition to making a clear statement that CAS
numbers for chemicals required under sgection 313 are cross
referenced with an alphabetical 1list of trade names, would have
required respondent [had it believed that 2-Butyoxyethanol was to
be reported pursuant to paragraph (c¢), "chemical categories"], to
enter "[N/A]" (presumably, "not applicable") in the CAS number
space on the Form R, even though 2-Butyoxyethanol has a CAS number.
This is a result which a reasonable member of the regulated
community might quickly reject as against common sense in the
search (if it were even suspected that a search was necessary) for
the correct interpretation of section 372.65 as regards the
reporting of glycol ethers having CAS numbers. Virtually the same
paragraph as the one set out above appears in the "Revised 1988
Version," dated January, 1989, (months after Form Rs for 1987
reporting were to have been filed).

Complainant argues that if respondent’s interpretation is
accepted, large numbers of glycol ethers that have CAS Registry
numbers (at least 291) would not be reportable. This, while true,
is irrelevant to a determination of whether the wording of section
372.65 gave fair notice at the time respondent was working through
it and the 1987-1988 EPA instruction documents in an effort to
determine who had to file Form Rs for what chemicals and when. The

concern raised by complainant, of course, is not respondent’s. It

Y Toxiec Chemical Release Inventory Reporting Foxrm R and

Instructions, Revised 1988 Version, Section 313 of the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act, Revised January, 1989.
This document was submitted as RX 2 in pretrial exchange.

13



belongs to the draftors of the regulation. Even if respondent’s
interpretation does not make sense in the context of the health and
safety objectives of the Act -- and there is no evidence that it
did not make sense to respondent® -- "it is the regulation as
written that must bear the blame." Diamond Roofing Co., Inec. v.
Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission, 528 F. 24 645,
650 (C.A. 5, 1976).

Last, complainant argues that the preamble to the final rule
should have alerted respondent that all glycol ethers had to be
reported. This assertion is based upon Section VIII, Chemical List

Issues, Subsection B.5 (53 Federal Register 4519), which states:

5. Glycol Ethers. Commenters suggested
that the Agency should include specific
glycol ethers in the chemical specific
listings of § 372.65(a) and (b) of the rule
and remove it as a category form ([sic] §
372.65(c). EPA considers this an amendment
or modification to the list of chemicals
and is not changing the list in this

rulemaking.?

2 In fact, there is evidence that it did make sense to
respondent, which believed 2-Butyoxyethanol and some other glycol
ethers were not "that toxic". See report of the September 11,
1989, inspection of respondent’s facility, submitted with
complainant’s pretrial exchange as exhibit 1, at 2-3.

2 Ccomplainant’s Memorandum at 8.
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A reading of this language would have done nothing to alert
respondent that paragraph (c¢) of the rule meant that all glycol
ethers had to be reported. The words " (C)ommenters suggested that
the Agency should include specific glycol ethers in the chemical
specific listings . . . and remove it as a category . . . . "
hardly states the problem for what it was: 1. e. that the language
of section 372.65, the specific listing of some glycol ethers, and
the instruction books published before July 1, 1988, had created
the impression that the only reportable glycol ethers with CAS
numbers were those specifically listed. The last sentence of the
preamble set out above is by no means clear enough to constitute
notice of the interpretation contended for by complainant. Indeed,
that the commenters’ suggestions were viewed only as an "amendment
or modification" tells nothing of the substance of the dispute. It
is noted that on March 21, 1989, almost nine months after the Form
R that is the subject of this proceeding was to have been filed,
EPA published a list of 291 glycol ethers that have CAS numbers and

which were considered reportable by EPA. #? While complainant says

this 1list was published "as guidance,"® it unquestionably
constitutes recognition that there had been a rather widespread
problem with the interpretation of section 372.65 and certain other
documents pertaining to responsibilities under EPCRA.

In sum, it is concluded that adequate notice was not given

2 Complainant’s Memorandum at 8. (See also attachment 3 of
complainant’s pretrial exchange). The list was stated to be not
"all inclusive".

® 1d.
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here of the reportability of 2-Butyoxyethanol for calendar year
1987, and that instructional materials issued in connection with
sections 372.30 and 372.65 reporting contributed to the problem.
As the court in Diamond Roofing, supra, * stated with respect to
an Occupational Health and Safety Administration regulation, " (A)n
employer is entitled to fair notice in dealing with his government.
Like other statutes and regulations which allow monetary penalties
against those who violate them, [a regulation] must give . . . fair
warning of the conduct it prohibits or requires, and it must
provide a reasonably clear standard of culpability to circumscribe
the discretion of the enforcing authority and its agents . . . (I)f
regulation subjects private parties to criminal or civil sanctions,
a regulation cannot be construed to mean what an agency intended

but did not adequately express."®

% See page 13, supra.

¥ Opinion of Chief Judge of the Fifth Circuit John R. Brown in
Diamond Roofing, supra, at 649. Accord, opinion by then Circuit
Judge Scalia in Gates & Fox Company, Inc. v. Occupational Health
and Safety Administration, 790 F. 2d 154, 156 (D. C. Cir. 1986).
Where fair or adequate notice of required conduct is not given,
case law almost uniformly holds that there is no 1liability for
failure to act according to the standard or regulation which
purports to specify such conduct. The exception of Rollins
Environmental Services (NJ), Inc. v. EPA, 937 F. 2d 649, where the
D.C. Circuit in 1991 held that because the regulation in question
was ambiguous and confusing, respondent could not be penalized, but
could be found liable, must be limited to the exact circumstances
of that case. The opinion is Rollins is difficult because, while
the court is unanimous in holding that no penalty could be imposed,
it split over the imposition of liability. The dissent believed
that the imposition of 1liability was itself a form of civil
forfeiture. This analysis is not a small matter, since under EPA
penalty policies, previous violations are taken into account in
proposing penalties if a respondent is subsequently sued by EPA,
and, for previous "violators" the penalty can be higher. 1In any
case, respondent is not resident in the D. C. Circuit.

16



The government must, in order to continue to enjoy the
confidence of the reguléted community, the public, and the courts
in the conduct of its enforcement activities, occasionally bear the
consequences of unclear wording in the extensive and detailed
implementing regulations for its statutory responsibilities. This
should be regarded as a small price to pay for the maintenance of
credibility and public trust, and for a reputation of fairness in

dealing with the regulated community.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. Respondent is a "person" as defined at § 329(7) of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. 11049(7).
2. Respondent is the owner or operator of a ﬁfacility," as
defined at § 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), at which it
blends and packages detergents for commercial laundries and car

® and employs ten or more full time employees, as

wash operations,?
defined by regulation.

3. Respondent falls within Standard Industrial Codes 20-39.

4. Respondent’s facility processed 2-Butyoxyethanol in excess
of 75,000 pounds in calendar year 1987.

5. In determining its responsibilities under the then-new Act
in early 1988, respondent considered the language of 40 C.F.R. §8§

372.65(a), (b), and (c), as well as certain instructional guidance

documents published by EPA in connection therewith, and concluded

% Complainant’s exhibit 1, at page 2 of the report of the
September 11, 1989, inspection of respondent’s facility.
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that the filing of a Form R for the use of 2-Butyoxyethanol was not
required for calendar year 1987. Respondent relied contemporan-
eously upon its interpretation of the regulation and the guidance
materials in forming its belief that no filing for the year 1987
was required.?

6. The interpretation contended for by complainant is not
adequately expressed, and fair notice of such interpretation was
not given to respondent for the determination which it had to make
of the need to file a Form R for 2-Butyoxyethanol processing in
1987.

7. After the publication of the list of 291 reportable glycol
ethers on March 21, 1989, respondent did file a Form R for the
processing of 2-Butyoxyethanol.?®

8. Respondent is not liable for its failure to file a Form R

for 2-Butyoxyethanol for calendar year 1987 by July 1, 1988.

7 It is assumed that complainant would not dispute the factual
findings in paragraphs 5 and 7 of these findings, since they are
based upon material which appears in complainant’s pretrial
exchange. In an abundance of caution, however, provision will be
made for any challenge complainant may wish to make by way of a
motion for reconsideration.

% gee respondent’s exhibit 20 in pretrial exchange, also
attached to respondent’s Memorandum, in which a letter of June 6,
1990, from EPA notes that respondent did file a Form R for calendar
year 1988, and in which EPA states that it is trying to "determine

the consistency of reporting, [and] we are contacting all
facilities which reported for one year but not both years [i. e.
1987 and 1988]." See also report of the September 11, 1989,

ingpection of respondent’s facility, submitted as an exhibit in
complainant’s pretrial exchange.
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ORDER
Accordingly, respondent having been found not liable for the
violation charged, respondent’s motion for "accelerated decision"
is hereby granted. And it is FURTHER ORDERED that complainant’s

motion for "accelerated decision" herein is denied.

And it is FURTHER ORDERED that this matter be, and it is
hereby, dismissed with prejudice.

Any motion for reconsideration of findings 5 and 7 herein
based upon lack of notice to complainant that such factual findings
would be made shall be filed no later than fifteen (15) days from

this date.

e e e

J. F. Greene
Administrative Law Judge

Washington, D.C.
February 28, 1993
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APPENDTIX




Environmental Protection Agency

Subpart D—Specific Toxic Chemical
Listings

§372.65 Chemicals and chemical catego-
ries to which this part applies.

The requirements of this part apply
to the following chemicals and chemi-
cal categories. This section contains
three listings. Paragraph (a) of this
section is an alphabetical order listing
of those chemicals that have an associ-
ated Chemical Abstracts Service (CAS)

Registry number. Paragraph (b) of
this section contains a CAS number
order list of the same chemicals listed
in paragraph (a) of this section. Para-
graph (¢) of this section contains the
chemical categories for which report-
ing is required. These chemical catego-
ries are listed in alphabetical order
and do not have CAS numbers. Each
listing identifies the effective date for
reporting under § 372.30.

(a) Alphabdetical listing.

§ 372.65

Chemical name CAS No. Effective date

Acelaigehyde 75-07-0 01/01/87
Acetarmide 60~35-5 01/01/87
Acetone 67641 01/01/87
Acetonitrile 75-05-8 01/01/87
2-Acetylaminofiuorene 53-96-3 01/01/87
Acroien 107-02-8 01/01/87
Acrytamice ......... 78-06-1 01/01/87
Acrylic acid 79-10-7 01/01/87
Acrylomtnie 107-13-1 01/01/87
Algnn{1.4:5.8-Oimethanonaphihalene, 1.2.3.4,10,10-hexachioro-1,4,4a,5,8.8a-

nexahydro-(1.aipha..4.aipha..4a.beta..5.2ipha.,8.2i0ha., BA.DOW.)) e cceervanreee 309-00-2 01/01/87
Altyt aleohol 107-18-8 1/01/90
Altyt ehionde . 107-05-1 01/01/87
Algrminym (flume or dust) 7429-90-5 01/01/87
Aluminum oxide (fibrous forms) 1344-28-1 01/01/87
2-AmunoanthraQquinone 117-79-3 01/01/87
4-Aminoazobenzene | 60-09-3 01/01/87
c-Aminoppneny| ! 92-87-1 01/01/87-
T AMING=2-MEINYIENIRTAGUINONG ....o......oceer. . creosssassneissressrssasemesssssnrasinesssasesssessonssmsansesssanearisrsses | 82-28-0 : 01/01/87
Ammena ............ 7664—41-7 ' 01/01/87
Ammonmm nitrate (sohution) 6484-52-2 01/01/87
Ammonmium sulfate (solyton) 7783-20-2 01/01/87
ARNNG........cccneaen 62-53-3 ' 01/01/87
o-Ansicine 90-04-0 ' 01/01/87
S-Amsiine ... 104-54-9 ; 01/01/87
o-Anis:dine hydrochionde. ! 134-29-2 . 01/01/87
Anthracena . . | 120-12-7 ' 01/01/87
Anumony b 7e40-360 01/01/87
Arsenmc ... 7440-38-2 . 01/01/87
Aspestos (tnable) 1332-21-4 I 01/01/87
Sanum 7440-39-3 ! 01r01/87
Benzal chionde 98-87-3 | 01/01/87
Benzamoace 55-210 i 01/01/87
Benzene 71-43-2 i 01/01/87
Senzidine 92-87-5 01/01/87
Senzowe tnchionde (Benzotnchloride) 98-07-7 01/01/87
Benzoy! chicride 96-88-4 01/01/87
Senzoy! peroxide 94-36-0 01/01/87
Senzyl chionde 100-~44-7 01/01/87
Serythum 7440-41-7 01/01/87
Biphenyl. 92-52-4 01/01/87
Bis(2-chioroathyl) ether 111444 01/01/87
Bis(chicromethyl) ether 542-88-1 01/01/87
Bis(2-chioro-1-methylethyl) ether 108-80-1 01/01/87
Sis(2-ethylhexyl) adipate 103-23-1 01/01/87
Bromocnlorodifivoromethane (Halon 1211) 353.59-3 7/8/90
Bromgtorm (Tridror ane) 75-25-2 01/01/87
Bromomethane (Methyl bromide) 74-83-9 01/01/87
Sromotnfiuoromethane (Halon 1301) 75-83-8 7/8790
1,3-Butadiene 106=-95-0 01/01787
Butyt acrdate 141-32-2 01/03/87
~Butyl alconol 71-36-3 01/01/87
sec-Butyl alcohot 78-92-2 01/01/87
terr-Butyl aiconhol 75-85-0 01/01/87
Suty! benzyl phthalate 85-68-7 I 01/01/87
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Chermucal narme i CAS No. ENectove dain
1.2-3utylene oxiie 108=38~7 01v/0%/87
Sytyraidenyce 123-72-4 01/01/87
C.l. Acid Green 3 ABEnT B D1/01/87
C... Sasic Green 4 569642 01/01/87
C.I. Basic Red 1 S85-18-3 Q1/01/87
C.1. Owrect Black 38 193737-7 o1/01/87
C.l Oirect Swe 8 26502 =48-2 a1/0v/87
G.i, Owect Srown 95 1807 1-86-8 01/01/87
C.l. Dispersa Yellow 1 2032-40-8 01/01/87
C.i Food Red § 3781-53-3 a1/Q1/a87
C.l. Food Red 15 81-48-9 01/01/87
C.l. Solvert Orange 7. J118=97-8 a1701/087
C.l. Solant Yeilow 3 97-56-13 a1/01/47
C.I. Soivent Yeillow 14 842-07-9 Q1,01/87
C.l. Soivent Ye#ow 34 [Aunmina) 492-80-3 01/01/87
C.l Vat Yeilow 4 128-58-5 03/Q1/87
Cagmium T 440439 01/Q1/87
Caioym syanarmds 158-82~-7 Qt/01/87
Captan{ 1 M-isoindoie-1,3(2H)-dione.30. 4,7, 7 a-tetranydro-2- [{trichioromaethyfthio T-1.... ... 133-08-2 01/01/87
Cartaryt (1-Naphthalenol, metyicarbamate] 83-25..2 01/Q1/87
Caroon disultfde 75-15-0 01/01,87
Carbon tetrachionds 56-23-5 01701787
Camonyl suifide. 483-58-1 o1/01/47
Catechot 120-80-3 o1/01/87
Chiorampan {Banzoic sod. J-aming-2,5-giehloro-1 133=-90-4 Q1/01/87
Chiorgane [4.7-Mathangindan,1.2.4.5.8.7 4.8-octachicrm-2,2.3a.4.7.7a-haxanydro-] ........ 4 §7-74-3 Q1/01/87
Chionne 7782-30-5 Q1/01/87
Chionna doxide. 10048=-04-4 01/0%/87
Chiaroacede ackd 79-11-8 o1/01/87
2-Chicroaceicohenona rvarter e serstrams s stanstann pese e tmnrasanse b sretesantra o i 532-27-4 01/01/87
CRICIODEATINMG .........osvsmcresnesssimsrsassaesons e b enRre s caee e eope dbnbbenba e n i enatessms e e bt ens . 108-90-7 Q1/01/87
Chicrobendiate [Senzensacetic acid.  4-chioro-.alpha.<{4-.chiorophenyll- alpha -Ry- |

droxy-. ethyt datar] et e ehemmmtean seeye fasetesrasaen ot es ara semaabbenremmsnn e seatetares e ereee ; 510-15-6 at/01/87
ChiorGathand (EMYl CIUINGEY ... ieeeren ccrnarasserssnssmmseressmasrestsabtarsanas et snstrassamms snissabesnsssareesrtsess [ T5-00-1 01/01/87
CIIGEOIMETT . et seeets s ot s samessetmssans e s rmmma s rsamras . 67-88-3 Qs/0s/87
Chigrgmaethana lmmvﬁ chionde)........... 74-47-3 01/01/87
CRIOTOMBtRY) IMINYL BUM, oo eiereicran ccasrtamm st temec son estan veme reeai e sbirsreasaemtons 107-30-2 J1/01/87
CRCTODIANE ..o verrerresmmcsassaer - . eerrerbAPaes bR et am e ep et st ena e *26-99-3 01/01/87
Chaegtnaicrt [1.3-Jenzenecicartontrle. 2 4 5 achiorg- ] '997-45-5 0t/Q1/87
Chrgmaum.,... [P Tad(aaT-3 Qr/Q1/87
Coomt 7430-48-4 01/01/87
COODEI ......ocoierirervreces evrmevesemeaeseamempe boaassos e hea s e mi e st amtae e 1yt e v e TR AT PR nr e et rnabettarenaen 7440-50-4 01/01/87
Creasats 8001-48-9 1/01/90
pCreuamne ., £20-71-8 01/Qt/87
Cresal (Mmuxed momcrs) ................................. 1313=-77-3 0t/D1/87
m-Crasai.., S, ! 108-39-4 01/01/87
o-Cruol....A O U L 95-48-7 01/01/87
BCrasot. .. ; 106—44-5 Qt/01/87
Cumena - q 99-52-8 a1/01/87
Cumene nydrogeroside . B0~15-9 01/01/87
Cuplerrani Benzenearmng, N-nydrony-N-nitros$o, $MmMOnNUm SRItL ... rsernsscins e i 135-20-8 01701787
CYCIORBXAIME ...t ccmcctairissssammss e soseaon et basra s apeaR FheY £88 12800 R ER AERAR ek b8 s AR b i bbbt 110-82-7 Q1/01/87
2.4-0 [Acetic acid. (2. 4-ichiorophenoxy)-] 84-75-7 01/01/87
Cecatromodpnenyl oude 1163-19-5 Q1/Q1/87
Oiattare (Carvamothione acd, bis{1-mattwyietyt)-, S-(2.3-dichiero-2-propenyl) ester]....... 2300-18-4 Q1/01/87
2.4-Diarmncanisole 81508 0t/0v/87
2.a-Drarmincaniscie suifate........ 39156-41-7 01/01/87
4 4 -Drarmunocmhenyl ether 101-80-4 Q1701787
Diamingtouene (Mixed womears) 25378-45-8 0t:0%/87
2. 4-Cramunatotuens ... 35-80-7 01/01/87
Diazomethans. 334-88-2 01/01/87
Choenzoturan 133643 01/01/87
1,2-Dwyroma-J-<higracropana (DBCP)...... 96-12-8 01/01/87
1.2-Dibromoethane (Einyiene didromids) 106-93-4 Q1/01/87
Dibromatstratiueroethans (Hakn 2402) 124-73-2 T7i8/5Q
Diouryt phthaiate 84-74-2 01/Q1/87
Dichiorobeniene (maed | Wra) 25321-22-8 01/01/87
1.2-Oichicrchenzme 95-50-1 01/01/87
1.3-Detiorooentens 541-73-1 o1/01/87
1,4-Clicnicrob 106-46-7 ov/o1/87
1.3-Dichicrobennding F1=F4-1 91/01/87
Dhehidretromomethane 75-27-4 01/01/87
Drehiorodifiuorometnane (CFC-12) 75-71-8 7/8/9Q
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1.2-Dichioroethane (Ethylene dichionde) 107-06-2 01/01/87
1.2-Dichiorethyiene £40-59-0 01/01/87
Osehioromethane (Methylene chioride) 75-09-2 01/01/87
2.4.Dichiorophenct 120-83-2 01/01/87
1,2-Dichioropropane 78-87-5 01/01/87
2.3-Dichioropropens 76-88-8 1/01/90
1,3-Ds 542-75-8 01/01/87
Dichlorotetrafiuorosthane (CFC-114) 76-14-2 7/8/90
Dchiorves [Phosphoric acid, 2.2-dichiorosthenyt dimethyt ester) 62-73-7 01/01/87
Drcotel [Benzenemaethanol,4-chioro-.alpha. {4-chiorophenyi)-.aipha.-{trichioremethyi)-] ... 115-32-2 01/01/87
Drepoxybutane 1464-53-8 01/01/87
Owethanciammne 111-42-2 01/01/87
Dw(2-ethyinexyl) phthaiate (DEHP) 177-81-7 01/01/87
Drethyt phthalate 84-66-2 01/01/87
Drathyl suttate 64-67-5 01701787
3.3 -Dimethoxybenzidine 119-90-4 01701787
4-Dimethylammoazobenzens 60-11-7 01/01/87
3.3 .Dimethyibernzidine (o-Tolidine) 119-93-7 01/01/87
Oimethytcarbamyt chioride 79-44-7 01/01/87
1.:-Dimethyl hydrazine 57-14-7 01/01/87
2.4-Dimethyipnenc! 105-87-9 01/01/87
Oimethyl phthalate 131-11-3 01/01/87
Dimathy! sulfate 77-78-1 01/01/87
M-DINMPODBNZONEG ..........ccovevenercasrierassoesenstosmsnsmsmnstsssitssesesarassatstsstans saeessansssssssensensrssassestessassnssaes 99-85-0 1701/99Q
o-Dinrrobenzens 528-29-0 1701780
p-Oimtrobenzene. 100-25-4 1/01/%0
4.5-Ointro-o-cresol 534-52-1 01/01/87
2.4-Dinrrophnencl 51-28-5 01/01/87
2.4.Dinty J i 121-14-2 01/01/87
2.6-Dinrotoluene ! 606-20-2 01/01/87
onireloiyene (Mixed 1ISOMEBIS)..vvnens ceevrennnne 25321-14-6 1701790
nOhocty! phthalate . . 117-84-0 01/01/87
1.4-Doxane. ! 123-91-1 01/01/87
1.2-Orohenyinygrazine (Hydrazobenzene ; 122-66-7 01/01/87
Eacriorohydnn 106-89-8 01/01/87
2-Ztnoxyethanol .......... . 110-80-§ 04/01/87
Syl acrylate.....naees ceemranes e et o 14C-88-5 01/01/87
Einylbenzens 100414 01/01/87
Z:inyt chigrotormate eveteraseasentants ae st e tesnsaranean saaessar st : 541-41-3 01/01/87
Einylene ... 74-85-1 01/01/87
E:nylene GIYCOL... .ot 107-21-1 01/01/87
Z:nylengimina(Azingdine) .... 151-56—4 01/01/87
Etnylene oxide.. . | 75-21-8 01/01/87
SUBYHBN@ TNIOUTBR ...oo....vcrneesereaseesssaesssasesseesssssassasssssssasassesssn s saresbesesnssssssnisssesassassssasmsmesssresssansosssn | 96-45-7 01/01/87
Sluometuron-{Urea. N.N-dimethyl-N -(3-(trifluorometnyl)pheryll-d.......cccormmremmrnnmreerrennnsd! 2164-17-2 01/01/87
Formaidenyde | 50-00-0 01/01/87
Freon 113 [(Ethane, 1,1,2-tnchioro-1,2.2-trifluoro-] : 76-13-1 01/01/87
=eptachior(1,.4,5.6,7,8.8-Heptachioro-3a.4,7,7a-1etrahydro-4.7 -mathano- 1 H-indene ] ... : 76—44-8 01/01/87
Hexachiorobenzens ' 118-T4=1 01/01/87
exachioro-1.3-putadiene 87-68-3 01/01/87
Hexachlorocyclopentadane T7=47-4 01/01/87
Hexachioroethane 67-72-1 01/01/87
Mexachioronaphthaiene 1335-87-1 01/01/87
Hexamethylphosphoramide 680-31-9 01/01/87
Hydrazine 302-01-2 01/01/87
Hydrazine sulfate 10034-93-2 01/01/87
Hydrochlonc acid 7647-01-0 01/01/87
Hydrogen Cyanide 74-90-8 01/01/87
Hycrogen fluoride 7664-39-3 01/01/87
Hydroquinone 123-31-9 01/01/87
Isobutyralgenyde 78-84-2 01/01/87
isopropyl alcohoi (Oniy persons who manufactre by the spong acd process are

subject. NO suppher notifiction.) 67-83-0 01/01/87
4,4’ -sopropyhidenediphencl 80-05-7 01/01/87
Isosatroie 120-58-1 1701/80
Lead 7439-92-1 01701787
Lindane [Cyciahexane, 1.2.3,4.5.6-hexachioro-

(1.alpha..2.alpha J.beta. .4 alpha. S.aipha 6.beta )] £8-89-9 01/01/87
Maleic anhydnde 108-31-8 01/01/87
Maneb (Carbamodithioic acid, 1.2-ethanediyibis-, manganese plex) 12427-38-2 01/01/87
Manganese 7439-96-5 01/01/87
Mercury 7439-87-6 01/01/87
Metnano! 67-56~1 01/01/87
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Chemicai name ‘ CAS No. ¢ EMective date
- . [
Vetnaxychior [Benzene, 1.1°+(2.2.2-Iichioroethylidene)Dm [ 4-MethOXY-] . ... e i 72-43-5 | ow01/87
- 2-Methgxyethanol ) 109-36~4 01/01/87 .
- Methyl acryiate | 96-33-3 01/01/87
¢ Mathyt ‘ertdutyt ether ! 1834-04~4 01/01/87
1.4’ -Methylenebdrs{2-chioroaniline) (MBOCA) | 101-14-4 01/01/87
4,4'-Methylenebis( N.A-dimethyl) berzenarmine ; ; 101-61-1 01/01/87
Maethylenebtis(phenylisocysnate) (MBI) | 101-83-8 01/01/87
Maethylene bromide ' 74495-3 01/01/37
4.4'-Methylenedianiiine 101779 01/01/87
Mathyl ethyt ketone 78-93-3 01/01/87
Methyl hydrazing 80-34-4 01/01/87
Maethy! iodic 74-88-4 01/01/87
Methyl isobutyl ketone 108-10-1 01/01/87
Mathyi isocyanate 824-33-9 01/01/87
H Methyl methacryiate 80-82-68 01/01/87
. Michier's ketone 90-94-8 01/01/87
Molybdenum trigxide 1313-27-5 01/01/87
(Mono)ehioropentafiuoroethane (CFC-118) 76=15-3 7/8/90
Mustard gas [Ethane, 1,1'-thicbis{2-chioro-] | 505-80-2 01/01/87
Naphthalene : 91-20-3 01/01/87
2/pna-Naphthylamine 134-32-7 01/01/87
oeta-Naphthylamine 91-59-8 01/Q01/87
Nicket 7440-02-0 : 01/01/87
Nine acd i 7697-37-2 | o01/01/87
Nitntotnacebe acid ) 139-13-9 i 01/01/87
5-Nitro-o-anisidine i 99-59-2 i 01/01/87
; Nirobenzene ' 98-95-3 ' o1/01/87
4.Nitropiphenyl ! 92-93-3 | 01/01/87
Nitroten {Benzene, 2.4-dichioro-1-{4-mrophenoxy)-] . 1836-75-5 ‘o 01/01/87
Nitrogen mustarg {2-Chioro-N-{2-chioroethyl)-N-mathylethanaming]............c.ceevereenieerenn i 51.75-2 01/01/87
¢ Nitrogiycenn : 5§5-§3-0 I o1/01/87
i 2-Nivognencl. 88-75-5 | 01/01/87
. 4-Nirgorenct ) 100-02-7 { 01/01/87
. 2-Nropropane i 79-36-9 ;. 0v/0r /87
D-NITCSOMUDNOMTYIAMINM ..cuv.ovesiavnmrroes s nasesassaronssse issmmasstmsssssesscnssecs o 156=10-35 i 01/01/87
. NV ANRCIMOINYIBNINING ..nveonercriisasneniini sttt crc b et st et s s et msn st snsast 121-63-7 | Qwov/87
: A-Nitro sodi-r=putylamine 924-18-3 ( 01/01/87
. N-Nitrosodiethylamne . 33-18-5 Y ovo1/87
: AN-NITOSOCUMEUIYIRITING ...oocrcnesctnecnanns o esnsssrsione sassesmssas s s s cas s enecenenshssasasss s sassasssntss srosssesiseosber 6§2-75-9 01/01/87
: NeNIPOSAOIONENYIAMING .........covtsereeennen. reveereetenrate e srannes i 36-30-8 - 01/01.87
I ANitrosedi-n-propylamine §21-34-7 1 Q1/01/87
; A-NIrgSoMetNy vy BMNG.......oveveveeinernnrns . : 4549-40-0 : 01/01/87
H A=Nitrosemorphokne teresrssbenrastetaateaerbeeseeesteensantsonsbe s s an e amas et sanatre s e ben sms esrmsass ; 59-89-2 . 01/01/87
} A=Nitroso-Aeathylures. ] 753-73-9 i 01/01/87
{ A-Nitroso-A-methylurea 684-93-5 ! 01/Q1/87
E N-Nitrasgnormicoting i 16543-55-3 . 01/01/87
N-Nitrosopipending o 100-75-4 1 0t/01/87
‘ Octacnioronaphihatene i 2234-13-1 , 01/01/87
v Csmium tevonde i 20816=-12-0 0t/01/87
H Paratrian (Phasahorathioic acid, O.O-ciethyl-O-( 4-trooneny!) eS1er] .........o.wrreren 56-38-2 01/01/87
{ Pentacnigrophenaol (PCP) 87-86-5 01/01/87
1 Pearaceuc acd 79-21-0 01/01/87
3 Phenol 108-95-2 01/01/87
: p-Phenylenediamine 106-50-3 01/01/87
2-Phenytphenoi 90-43-7 01/01/87
i Phosgene 7544-5 01/01/87
° Phosonone acid 7664-38~2 01/01/87
Phaspnrorus (yetiow or white) 7723-14-0 01/01/87
Pnthalic anhydride 85-44-9 0t1/01/87
Picne acid 88-89-1 01/01/87
Poiychionnated biphenyls (PCBs) 1336~36-3 Q1/01/87
Propane suitone 1120-71-4 01/01/87
beta-Propsoiactone 57-57-8 01/01/87
Propwonaidenyde 123-38-8 01/01/87
Propoxur [Phenol, 2+(1-methylethoxy)-, methyicarbamate] 114-26-1 01/01/87
Propytens (Propene) 115-Q7-1 01/01/87
Propyleneimine 75-55-8 01/01/87
Propylens onde. 75-56-9 01/01/87
Pynaine 110-86-1 0t/Q1/87
Quinaiine 91-22-5 01/01/87
Quinone 106-51-4 01/01/87
Cuintazene [Pentachicromtrobenzene] 82-68-3 01/01/87
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_ Chemicai name ' CAS Nao. | EMective date
. Saccharin (only persons who manutacure are subject, no supplier notification) [1,2-
Benzsothiazel-3(2r)-one. 1,1 -dioxide ) 81-07-2 01/01/87
Satrole 94-58-7 01/01/87
Selenum 7782-49=-2 01/01/87
Sitver T440-22-4 01/01/87
Styrene 100-42-5 01/01/87
3 Styrene oxide 96-09-3 01/01/87
Sultunc acid 7664-93-9 01/01/87
1.1.2.2-Tetrachioroethane 79-34-5 01/01/87
Tetrachioroethyiene (Perchioroethyiens) 127-18-4 01/01/87
Tetrachiorvinphos [Phosphone acid. 2-chioro-1-(2,4,5-trichiorophenyllethenyl dimethyl
oster] 981-11-§ 01/01/87
Thalwm 7440-28-0 01/01/87
Thicacetamide 62-55-5 01/01/87
4.4 -Thicdianiiine 139-65-1 01/01/87
Thiourea 82-56-8 01/01/87
Thonum dioxide 1314=20-1 01/01/87
l Titanwum tetrachioride 7550-45-0 01/01/87
Toivene . 108-88-3 01/01/87
| Toivene-2,4-disocyanats ........ 584-84-9 01/01/87
! Toluene-2,6-diisccyanate | 91-08-7 01/01/87
Toluenediisccyanste (mixed isomers) ........ | 26471-82-5 : 1/01/9Q
o-Toluidine ........ce... reereneete e e e s o 95-534 i 01/01/87
o Towudine nycrocmomo i 636-21-§ i 01/01/87
Toxaphene ! 8001-35-2 01/01/87
} Tnanquone [2, S-Cyclomuwono-l 4-dione.2,2.5-1ri8( 1-aBNANYN ..o ceenneeirn e ! €8-76-8 ! 01/01/87
Tneniorfon (Phosphome acid, (2.2. 2~tncnloro-1-hydroxyemyl)- drmethy! ester] 52-68-8 | 01/01/87
1.2.4-Tneniorobanzene. ...........o...... ) 120-82-1 | o01/01/87
1.1.1.Tnenioroetnane (Metnyl enloretorm) : 71-55-6 | 01/01/87
1 1. 2-TACRIOIO@INENG —.......oeeeeecacten e caemeceesecionaneeenaneesnens : 79-00-5 . 01/01/87
i Teehioroethytene. . 79-01-8 . 01/01/87
| Tn muronuoromotham (Co-\,-m....., et erenaesteetesanenarerevarasassranatesensen s anrnaarnrasatanen i 75-69-4 i 7/8/90
: 2.4.5.Tnenioroghenol ... ! 95-95-4 ! 01/01/87
2.4 8-Tnenlorophenct ........ : 88-06-2 . 01/01/87
I Trtlurakin (Bcnzennnmc 2.8-cintro«N. N-cmvo:yi-A-(trmuovornomy')-n 1582-09-8 - Q1/01/87
’ 1. 2.4-Tnmetnyibenzens ... revraerere e oo 95-63-6 l 01/01/87
Tns(2,3-gibromoprooyt) pnosphau . . 125=72-7 i 01/01/87
Uretnane (Ethy! carbamate) .. eovetseree et armraae s en e rae . 51-79-6 . Owawer
Vanagwm {tume or qust)............... 7440-62-2 ;0o 187
Vinyl acetate e et bR bbb see s te et esbeperisr e i 108-05-4 i Qr/01/87
Viyl bromide ... eaereneebesa e B 593-60-2 I 01/01/87
. Vinyl chionge ... 75-01-4 I 01/01/87
Vinyidene chionde . : 75-35-4 . 01/01/87
Xylene (mixed rSOMers)...........ooeeveuve. weoerre. i 1330-20-7 I o1/01/87
m-xmn. ; 108-38-3 | 01/01/87
! o-Ayleane ........ . . ; 95-47-6 i 01/01/87
p-chne ....... | 106-42-3 01/01/87
' 2.6-Xyhdine... 87-62-7 01/01/87
Zine (fume Of dust) 7440-66-6 01/01/87
- Zinet {Carbamoditiuoxc acid. 1.2-ethanedryibrs-, Tinc compiex] 12122-67-7 01/01/87
i
(b
! CAS Number listing.
CAS No. | Chemical name Efective cate
50-00~0 | Formaidehyde 01/01/87
. 51.26=5 | 2.4-Dirntrophenocl Q1/01/87
! 51-75-2 | Nizogen mustard [ 2-Chioro-N-{2-chioroethyl)}-N-methylethanamine] 01/01/87
! 51-79-8 | Uretnane (Ethyl cartamate) 01/01/87
' £2-68-8 | Tnchiorton [Phosphonic acid, (2.2.2.thchioro- 1 -hydroxyethyl)-dimethy! ester] ............ raeeenened 01701787
] 53-96-3 | 2-Acstylaminafivorane 01/01/87
' §5-18-5 | ALNitrosodiethylamine 01/01/87
: §5.21-0 | Benzamide 01/01/87
! 55-63-0 | Nitrogtyeern ... 01/01/87
56~23-5 | Casrbon tewachionde 01/01/87
56-38-2 | Parattuon [Phosphorothose acd, 0.0-diethyl-O-(4-nitrophenyl)ester] 01/01/87
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§ 372.65 40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition)
CAS No. Chemical name + Eftective date-
57-14-7 : 1.1-Oimethyl hydrazne 01/01/87
57-57-8 | bera-Propolactone 01/01/87
57-74-9 | Chiorcane (4,7-Methanoincan, 1.2.4,5.6,7,8.8-octachioro-2.3.32.4.7,.7a-hexahydro-] _.....|  01/01/87

58-89-9 | Lindane {Cyciohexane, 1.2.3.4,5.8-hexachioro-

(1.aloha..2.aipha .3.Deta., 4.2ipha  5.2ipha. .6.beta.)-] 01/01/87
59-89-2 ; AeNirosomorpholine 01/01/87
80-09-3 | 4-Amincazoberzene 01/01/87
80-11-7 | 4.Oimettylamincazobenzene 01/01/87
80-34—4 | Methyl hydrazine 01/01/87
60-35-5 | Acetamide 01/01/87
82-53-3 | Aniline 01/01/87
62-55-5 | Thicacstarmide 01/01/87
6§2-56-8 | Thiourea 01/01/87
82-73-7 | Dichiorves [Phosphoric acid, 2.2-dichioroethenyt dimethyl ester] 01/01/87
82-75-9 | ARNitrcsodimethylamine 01/01/87
63-25-2 | Carbaryt {1-Naphthalenci, methyicarbamate) 01/01/87
84-57-5 | Diethyl sultate 01/01/87
67-56-1 | Methanal 01/01/87
67-83-0 | isopropyt alcohol (only persons who manufacture by the strong acid process are subject,

supplier notificaton not required.) 01/01/87
67-84-1 | Acetone 01/01/87
6§7-86-3 . Chicroform 01/01/87
§7-72-1 | Hexachioroethane 01/01/87
88-76-3 | Tranquone [2.5-Cyciohexaciene-1,4-dione.2.3,5-tris(1-aziridinyl)-1 01/01/87
71-36-3 ; n-Buty! aicohol 01/01/87
71-43-2 | Senzene, 01/01/87
71-55-6 ; 1,1,1.Trichiorcethane (Methyl chioroform) 01/01/87
72-43-5 ; Mathorychior [Benzena, 1,1'<(2.2.2,-mchioroetnylidene)is [4-Methoxy-] .............currevemeeresmmn. { 01/01/87
74-83-3 | 3romomethane (Methy! bromide) ! 01/01/87
T4-85-1 | Etnylene | 01/01/87
74-87-3 i Chicromethane (Methyl chiorde) 01/01/87
T3.88-4 : Memyt odide . 01701/87
74-30-3 | Hydrogen cyamde. . 91/01/87
T4-395-3 | Methyiene dromice.... 01/01/87
75-C0-3 - Chioroethane (Sthy! chionde). i 01/01/87
*5-01-4 , Vinyl chionde........ . 01/01/87
T5w05-8 ASRIOMNIE s s ! 01/01/87
PE 070 ' ACHBIGONYEE ..coeeoeie oo caeassesessbamssmsenmes e coeereneessssessastmsscsmseasamean e eermaesereesrreemssssssios sonra- i Q1/01/87
75-09-2 Ocniorometnane (MethyIeNn® SNICAUB) . ...................coovenenriicemrerieaesir s enmearssasssnsnssssnsencos ... 01/01/8?7
"5-15-0 Cardon aisulfide............cooeeen. ... . corererrmneinneeeer Q1701787
75-21-3 ' Etnylene oxide.............. et bbb s e aa b srsm et s e . . 01/01/87
75-25-2 ; 3romotorm (Tribromomathane) .................. 01/01/87
75-27-4 ' Orchiorobromomethane ....... i 01/01/87
75-35-4 : Vinylicene chionde ......... ¢ 01/01/87
75-44-5 | Pnosgenae..... 01/01/87
TS558 | PrODYI@NGITHNG ........oo.eeceeeecvieneseamesass s eomsomseoneeeossmmmssssssessstems st essens retsssateesemts tamestsbssssmsssessessesen . Q1/01/87
75-56-9 l Propylene oxide...... . . Owo/87
75-63-8 : 3romotntivoromethane (Halon 1301) ; 778790
75-85-0 | terr-8uryl alcohol ! 01/01/87
75-69-4 | Tneniorouoromethane (CFC-11) 7/8/90
75-71-8 | Dienlorodifiuvorometirane (CFC-12) 7/8/90
76-14-2 | Dichicrotetraliuorcesnane (CFC-114) . 7/8/90
76-15-3 | (Mono)chioropentatiucroethane (CFC-115) 7/8/%90
77-13-1 | Freon 113 [Ethane, 1.1,2-trichioro-1.2.2-trifluoro-] 01/01/87
76—44-3 | Heptachior [1.4.5.8,7.8.8-Heptachicro-3a,4.7,.7a-tetraNydro-4, 7-methano- 1 H-ndene] .............. 01/01/87
77-47-4 | Hexachiorocyciopentadiene 01/01/87
77-78-1 | Dimethyt sutfate 01/01/87
78-84-2 | Iscbutyraidehyde. 01/01/87
78-88-6 | 2,3-Dichioropropene 1701/90
78-87-5 | 1,2-Dichlorcpropane 01/01/87
78-92-2 | sec-Butyl alcohol . 01/01/87
78-93-3 | Methyt ethyl ketone 01/01/87
79-00-5 | 1,1,2-Trichioroethane 01/01/87
79-01-8 | Tn<hicroethylene 01701/87
79-06-1 | Acrylarmwde 01/01/87
79-10-7 | Acrytic acd 01/01/87
79-11-3 | Chioroacetic acd 01/01/87
79-21-0 | Peracetic acid 01/01/87
79-34-5 | 1,1,2. 2.Tetrachiocroethane 01/01/87
79—44-7 | Dimetnylcarbamyt chicride 01/01/87
T9-46-9 | 2-Nitropropane 01/01/87
30-05-7 ' 4.4'-1sopropylidenediphencl : 01/01/87
80-15-9 | Cumene hycroperonde 01/01/87
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CAS No. Chemical
Y ; hame Etfectve date
:?-g;-: | ;"w methacrytate 01/01/87
~2 , Sacchann (onfy persons who manutactur ; ; oas !
| _ Benzsothiazol-3(2H)-one.1,1-Gioxide] @ e subject. no suppier notficaton) (1.2-
81-88-9 : C.\. Food Red 1§ 01/01/87
82-28-0 ! ! 1-Ammno-2-methylanthraquinone 01/01/87
82-58-8 ; Quintozena [Pentachiorontrobe 01/01/87
84-66-2 | Dietnyl prnaiate enel c12
84-74-2 | Dibutyl phthalate 01/01/87
85~44-9 ; Phthaiic anhydnde 01/01/87
85-68-7 . Buty! benzyt phithalate 01/01/87
86-30-6 | _ A-Nitrosodiphenylamine 01/01/87
87-62-7 ° Z.G-Xyﬁdim 01/01/87
87-68-3 : Herachioro-1,3-butadiene 01/01/87
87-86=5 | Pentachiorophenol (PCP) 01/01/8?
88-06-2 2.4 6-Tnchiorophenol 01/01/87
88-75-5 | 2-Nitropnenol ©01/01/87
88-89-1 i Picric acid 01/01/87
50-04-0 | o-Anusine 01/01/87
90—43-7 | 2-Phenytphenci 01/01/87
90-94-8  Michier's ketone 01/01/87
91-20-3  Napnthalene 01/01/87
91-22-5 Quinoiine ) voreeeneny 01701787
91-59-8 Deta-Naohthylamine i 01/01/87
91.94-1 3.3 .Dichlorotenziding i 01/01/87
92-52-¢ Sipnenvi 01/01/87
92-87-1 4-Amincoiphenyl N . 01/01/87
92-87.5 Benzeine e : ' - ou/01/87
:f-gg:g aNa(roc-or\enyl R, ) g:;g:;:;
- ENZOY! DOFOXIOE .......snersecereens
94-59.7 s"’o': ................... 01/01/87
:;:_;,__; i;f.i‘“"c Py (2 ‘_dm‘oroon.m‘y” g:;g:;:;
¢ 954827  Cr@SCH .o 01/01/87
35-50-1 1.2.Diceioropenzens 01/01/87
' 95-53=4 o-ToWaINe ... 01/01/87
95-63-8 1.2.4-Tnmethyibenzene..... ... ) sy 01/01/87
95-80-7 2.4-Oiaminotoiuene L ITI I 01/01/87
I s | L e
tyrene oxde................
96~-12-8 1.2-Dipromo-3-cn 01/01/87
36-33-2 Methy! acrylate loroprapane (D8CP) ; i 01/01/87
33—4565:; E(nwseon. thiourea sevrenree e eneacenns] g:;g:::;
- 1. Sorwv !
, 98-07-7 Benzo et Yellow 3 . ! 01/01/87
! 98.82.8 Cum : ncc tnchionoe (Benzotnchiorice) L 01/01/87
i 98-87-3 - Benzal chlonde : 01/01/87
98-88—4 | Benzoyl chionde i 01/01/87
98-95-3 | Nitrobenzene 01/01/87
$9-59-2 | $-Nitro-o-ammaidine 01/01/87
99-65-0 ' m-Dinirobenzene 01/01/87
100~02-7 | a.Nitrophenci i 1/01/90
100-25-4 | p-Dinntrobenzens | ©61/01/87
100—41-4 | Ethyiberzene 1/01/90
100-42-5 | Styrene 01/01/87
100—44-7 | Benzyt chicride 01/01/87
100-75-4 | ALNiTosoppendine 01/01/87
101-14ut * 4.4’ -Methylenebis{2-chioroaniline) (MBOCA 01/701/87
et e Mamanana(N ATy Darzenams 01/04/87
101-77-3 | r:t?:::v;’nfmﬂm""y‘mmm (M8Y) 01/01/87
101-80— | 4.4'.Oramunodiphenyi ether 01/01/87
193231 | Sz e sooui ovor7
105.67-9 | 2.4.Dimatmyiphendi 01/01/87
106-42-3 | p-Xylene 01/01/87
' 106-44-5 | p-Cresol 01/01/87
: 106-46-7 i 1.4.Dicniorobenzene 01/01/87
I 106-50-3 | p-Phenvienediamme 01/01/87
! 106-51—4 | Quinone 01/01/87
106-88-7 ! 1,2-Butylene oxide ) 01/01/87
106-89-8 , EDICHOrONYanA ... cccccuuus 01/01/87
106-93— 1.2.Dibromoetnane (Etnylene ditromide)... g:;g:;:;
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- § 372.65 40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition) |
o’
. CAS No. - Chemical name | EMectve cats \
106-39-0 . 1,3-3utaciens 01/01/87
107-02-8 | Acrolen 01/01/87 :
107-05-1 ; Aliyl chionde 01/01/87 . {
107-06-2 ! 1,2.0ichicroethane (Ethylene dichiorice) 01/01/87
107-13-1 | Acrylonitrile 01/01/87
107-18-8 | Allyi alconol 1/01/90
107-21-1 | Etnylene ghycol 01/01/87
107-30-2 | Chioromethyl methyl ether 01/01,/87
108-05~4 | Vinyl acetate 01/01/87 '
108-10-1 | Methyi isobuty! ketcne 01/01/87 .
108-31-8 | Malesc anhydnde 01/01/87 ’
108-38-3 ' m-Xylene 01/01/87
108-39-4 | mCresoi 01/01/87
108-£0-1 | 8is{2-chicro-1-methylethyl)ether 01/01/87
108-38-3 | Toluene : 01/01/87
108-90-7 | Chiorobenzene 01/01/87
108-95-2 | Phenaci 01/01/87 !
109-86-4 | 2-Methoxyethanol 01/01/87
110-80-5 | 2-Ethoxyethanal 01/01/87
110-82-7 | Cyclohexane 01/01/87
110-86-1 ; Pyndine 01/01/87
111-42-2 | Diethanclamine 01/01/87
111-44-4 | Bis(2-chicroetnyl) sther 01/01/87
114-26-1 | Propoxur [Phenol, 2+(1-methylethoxy)-, methylcarbamate) 01/01/87
115=07-1 ; Propylene (Propenae) 01/01/87
115-32-2 | Dicotol [Benzenemethancl, 4-chioro-.aipha.-(4-chloropnenyl)- alpha.-(thchioromethyl)-] ......... 01/01/87
117-79-3 ; 2-Amincanthraquinone 01/01/87
117-81-7 | Di(2-etnyihexyl) pntnalate (DEHP) 01/01/87
117-84-0 | ~Dioctyl phthaiate 01/01/87
118-74-1 | Hexachiorobenzene 01/01/87
119-30-4 | 3.3°-Cimethoxybenzdine ........ 01/01/87
119-93-7 : 1.3"-Cima‘hvibenaging (o-Tolidine) 01/01/37
120-12-7 . Anthracene 01/01/87
120-53-1 ' ISOSANBIB .cuveeeeeereeeerererecnerrerecsonneres ! 1/01/90
120-71-3 ! pCresidine 01/01/87
120-80-9 ' Catechal . 01/01/87
120-82-1 ; 1.2.4-Tnchioronenzene . 01/01/87
“20-33-2 : 2.4-DiCPIOFODN@MON .....ccrcarersmermcsmeacnsecrraencsanicoonns i 01/01/87
121-14-2 ' 2.4-Dintrotoiuens ... ... . 01/01/87
121-69-7 AN A-Oimetnylaniing......... 01/01/87
122-86-7 1,2.Dwphenyinydranne (Hygdrazooenzena) 21:01/87

123-31-9 Hygroguinone............. G1/C1/87
123-38-6 ' Propronaidenyde ................ e e eete et b ,  01/01/87

123-72-8 ' Butyraldenyde ... ' 0t1/01/87
123-91-1 ; 1.4-Oroxane ........ .} 01/01/87
124-73-2 ' Dibromotetrafivoroethane (Halon 2402) i 7/8/90
126-72-7 ; Tns-2,3-cibromopropyl) phosphate ' 01/01/87
126-99-8 . Chioroprene 01/01/87
127-18—4 | Tetrachioroetitylene (Perchioroethylene) | 01/01/87
128-66-5 | C.I. Vat Yellow 4 ! 01/01/87
131-11-3 | Dimethyl phthalate ' 01/01/87
132-64-9 | Cibenzofuran. | o101/87
133-06-2 | Captan {1H-Isomdoie-1,3(2M)-gione.3a.4,7.7 a-tetranydro-2-[ (tichloromethyl)thio ]-1................ | 01/01/87
133-90-4 | Chiorampen (Benzoic acid, 3-amino-2.5-dichioro-] 01/01/87
134-29-2 | o-Anigidine hydrochioride . 01/01/87
134-32-7 : aipra-Naphthylamine 01/01/87
135-20-6 | Cupterron (Benzeneamine. N-hydroxy-N-nitrcso, ammonium sait] 01/01/87
139-13-9 | Nitnlotnacetc acid 01/01/87
139-65-1 ! 4 4'-Thiodianiline 01/01/87
140-88-5 | Etmyl acrytate .. 01/01/87
141-32-2 : Butyl acrylate 01/0t/87
151-56-4 | Ethyleneimine (AzZindine) 01/01/87
156-10-5 | p-Nitrosodiphenylamine 01/01/87
156-62-7 | Caicium cyanamde 01/01/87
302-01-2 | Hydrazne 01/01/87
309-00-2 : Alann{1,4:58-Dimethanonapnthalens.1.2.3.4,10,10-hexachioro-1.4,4a.5,.8 8a-hexahydro-

i (1.alpha.4.alpna.sa.beta. S.aipha.. 8.aipha..8a bata )] 01/01/87
334-88-3 : Diazomethane. 01/01/87
353-59-] | Bromochicrodifiuoromethane (Halon 1211) 7/8/90
463-58-1 i Carbonyl sulfide 01/01/87
492-80-8 ; C.I. Soivent Yellow 34 (Aunmine) 01/01/87
505-80-2 - Mustard gas [Ethane. 1.1 -thiotus(2-chioro-] . 01/01/87
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Environmental Protection Agency § 372.65
* CAS No. Chermucal name : Eftective date
£10-15-6 ' Chiorobenzdate[Senezeneaceuc acxd, 4-CRIOro-.aipha.-(4-chiorophaenyl)..aipha,-hydroxy-, |
: ’ © ethyt ester] 01/0%/87
528-29-0 | o-Dimtrobenzene 1/01/90
532-27-4 2-Chioroacetophenana .. 01/01/87
534-52-1 : 4.6-Drmitro-o=cresol i 01/01/87
540-59-0 , 1.2.Dichicroethylene ( 01/01/87
} 541-41-3 | Ethyl cnioroformate t 01/01/87
541-73-1 | 1.3.Dichiorobenzene 01/01/87
542-75-6 - 1.3-Dichicropropytene 01/01/87
$42-88-1 ' Brs{chioromethyl) ether 01/01/87
569-64-2 C.I. Basic Green 4 01/01/87
606-20-2 2.6-Dinitrotolvene ... 01/01,87
] §15-05-4 | 2.4-Diammoanisoie 01/01/87
621-64-7 ; A:Nitrosodi-n-propytamine 01/01/87
§24-83-9 ; Methyl isocyanate 01/01/87
636-21-5 | o-Toluidine hydrochionde 01/01/87
' 680-31-9 ' Hexametnhylphosphoramide 01/01/87
] §84-93-5 ! A-Nitroso-A-methyiurea 01/01/87
759-73-9 ' A-Nitroso-A-ethyiurea 01/0%/87
| 842-07-9 | C.L. Solvent Yellow 14 01/01/87
924-16-3 ' A-Nitrosodi-n-Butylamine 01/01/,87
961-11-5 ; Tetrachiorvinphos [Phosphoric acid, 2<chioro-1-(2.4,S-inchicropnenyl)ethenyl dimethyi
i ' ester] ... . . reesiesensn e . 01/Q1/87
! 989-38-8 . C.| Basic Reg ! .. i 01/01/87
1129-71-4 Propane suuone . 01/01/87
! 1163-19-5 : Decaoromodipheny! ona i 01/01/87
1313-27-5 ! MOlyDAGNUM MOXIE..........eeveceerecrmnsemerresarsrseessrnens . ' 01/01/87
1313-20-1 : Thonum dioxide ................ -t 01/01/87
1316-77-3 ' Cresal (mixed isomers) 01/01/87
133C-20-7 xylene imixed 1sOomers) .. 01/0/87
1332214 ASDESIOS (INADI@) ...oceieiecniiris e cineie e reeeerrerreesessaesanen s s smvrasnnsaas 01/01/87
1335-97-1 Hexachieronaohinaiensg et traetet et hate s e eeie e e racbTes 01/01/87
1236-36-3 Polycmidrinated nonenyls (PCBs) . 01/01/87
l 1344-28-1 ' Aiuminum omae (horous forms)... i 01701787
1a64-33-5 Drepaxy3utane e e . 01/01/87
' 1582-09-8 Thflurann [Bgnzsnearmune, 2 6-cmmo-N N-dtpropvl uorometnyl)-1 ... 01/01/87
1634042 Metnyl /0r7-Dutyl @@l ... coiteimrmimcsseriersecnsmiaiiennees 01/01/87
1835-75-5 - Nitroten [Senzene, 2, 4-oscnloro-1 «{4-nitrophenoxy)-] ... et neereren st e ssssane svevenrmenenent Q1701787
1897 -45-6 * Chiorothaiomnl (1-3-Benzenedicarpontrile . 2.4.5.6. lcuachloro—] .................................................. 01/0v/87

| 1937-37-7 C.i. Owect Stack 38. { 01/01/87
2164-17-2 Fluometuron [Urea, N.N-gimethyl-N'-[ J-{tntlucrometnyl)phenyl]-] ... 01/01/87
l 2234-13-1  Qctachioronapninaiene T 01/01/87
23053-16—¢ Diaitate {Caroamotmoic acid, Dis(1-methyletnyl)-. S-(2. a-c-cnloro-z—o:oocnyl)um] e 01701787
2602-45-2 C.1 Drwect Biue & , 01/01/87
2832-40-8 C.! Disperse Yeilow 3 3 01/01/87
l 3118.37-5 . C.I. Soivent Orange 7 . . ;. 01/01/87
3761-53-3 C.I. Food Red 5 HeeereereRsrae i es e e et et e R R et e e s aems e s raR e sharseres seseen i 01/01/87
I 4543-40-0 ; A-Nitrgsometnytvinytamine .. } o01/01/87
H 4680-78-8 | C.I. Acid Green 3 01/01/87
6484-52-2 | Ammorium nitrate (sotution) 01/01/87
7429-90-5 | Alumuinum (fumae or dust) 01/01/87
7439-92-1 | Lead- . 01/01/87
7439-36-5 | Manganese 01/01/87
7439-97-8 | Mercury 01/01/87
! 7440-02-0 | Nickel 01/01/87
7440-22-4 ; Silver .. 01/01/87
7440-28-0 | Thatlium Q1/01/87
7440-36-0 | Antmony 01/01/87
7440-38-2 | Arsenic 01/01/87
7440-39-3 ;| Banum 01/01/87
7440-41-7 | Berylium 01/01/87
7440~43-9 - Cagmiym. 01/01/87
7440-47-3 | Chromwm 01/01/87
i 7440-48-4 | Cobait 01/01/687
7440-50-8 | Copper 01/01/87
7440-82-2 | Vanadium (fume or dust)...... 01/01/87
T440-566-8 | Zinc (flume or dush 01/01/87
7550-45-0 ; Titarwumn tetrachionce 01/01/87
7647-01-0 | Hydrocnionc acd 01/01/87
7664-38-2  Pnhosphonc acd ... 01/01/87
7664-39-3 | Hycrogen fluornde . 01/01/87
7664-41-7 | Ammonia.... 01/01/87
7664-33-9 i Sultunc acig........... ! 01/01/87
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§ 372.65 40 CFR Ch. | (7-1-92 Edition)

CAS No. Chermcal name i Elfective date
: 7697-37-2 | Nitnc acid 01/01/87
. 7723-14=0 | Phosphorus (yellow or wihite) 01/01/87
- T782-49-2 | Selenum 01/01/87
. 7782-50-5 | Chiorine. 01/01/87
¢ 7763-20-2 | Ammonum sulfate (souton) 01/01/87
8001-35-2 | Toxaphene 01/01/87
8001-58-9 | Crecsote 1/01/90
10034-93-2 | Hydrazine sulfate 01/01/87
10049-04=4  Chioring dioxide 01/01/87
12122-87-7 | Zined {Carbamoditvwoic acid. 1.2-ethanediyites-, Znc complex] 01/Q1/87
12427-38-2 | Maneb [Carbamodithioic acid, 1.2-ethaneciyibis-, Manganess COMPMX) .. 01/01/87
16071-86=8 | C.L Direct Brown 95 01/01/87
18543-55=8 | AtNitrosonormucoting 01/01/87
20816-12-0 | Osmium tetroxice 01/01/87
25321-14-8 | Dinstrotoiuene
{mxed isomers) 1/01/90
25321-22-8 | Dichiorobenzene (mixed isomers) 01/01/87
25376-45-8 | Diaminotoiuane (mixed isomers) 01/01/87
26471-82-5 | Tolenediisocyanate
{mixed isOMmaers) 1701/9Q
39158-41-7 | 2,4-Diamincamsocie sulfate 01/01/87

(c) Chemical categories in alphabetical order.

Ettective
Categary name date.

Anvmony Compounds: Inciudes any unigue chemical substance t!haf contains antimony as part of that

chemical's infrastructure 01/01/87
Arsenic Compounds: Inciudes any unGue chemical substancs that contains arsenc as parnt of that chemical's '

Infrastructure 01/01/87
Sarum Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contans banum as pant of that chemical's

INfrasructure 01/01/87
Serytium Compounds: includes any unique chemical substance whal contans berylium as pant of that

chemical's nfrastructure. 01/01/87
Cacmum Compounds: Includes ary umgque cqu-cal substance !nat contang cadrmwum as part of mlt'

chermcal’s infrastructure... - ! 01/01/87

Zhiorophenals } 01/01/87

OH
Cly

H(S—x)

Wherex=1to3
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Chromuum Compounds: Inciudes any umgue chemical substance that containg ctvomwum as part of thet
chermcal’s infrastructure. 01/01/87
Cobait Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance Mat contams cobalt as part of that chemical's
. . . 01/01/87
Copper Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contains copper as part of that chemical’s
infrastructure (except for C.i. Pigment Biue 15 (PB-15, CAS No. 147-14-8), C... Pigment Green 7 (PG-7, CAS
No. 1328-53-8). and C.L Pigment Green 38 (PG-36. CAS No. 14302-13-7) 01/01/87
Cyamde Compounds: X~ CN”~ where X = H" or any other group where 3 formal dissociation can be mads. For
exampie KCN, or Ca{CN)s 01/01/87
Glycol Ethers: Inciudes mono- and di- sthers ot ethyiene giycoi, diethylene glycol, and thethylene glyco! ..........]  01/01/87
R —(OCH,CH. )"
Where:
n=1,2 003
R=alkyl or aryl grouos,
R=RA" M, or groups which, when removed, yield glycol ethers with the structure:
A = (OCHlacrle-on
Polymers are exciuded from this category.
Lead Compounds: Inciudes any unique chemical substance that containg lead as part of that chemical’s
infrastructure 01/01/87
Manganese Compounds: inciudes any unuque chemical substance that contains manganase as part of that
chemical's infrastructure. 01/01/87
Mercury Compounds: Inciudes any uniQue chemical substance that containg mercury 3s part of that chemical's
infrastructure 01/01/87
Nicket Compounds: Includes any unique chemical substance that contans nickel as pan of that chemucal's
intrastructure 01/01/87
Polyprominated Biphenyls (PBBS) ... ieerenreesreecvensesesesesasncsennns 01/01/87
H( |0-x)
Where x=1to 10
Effective
Category name date.

Selermum Compounds: includes any umnQue chemical substance that contains selenium as part of that
chermical’s infrastructure

01/01/87

Siver Compounds:. inciudes any unique chemical substance that contains silver as part of that chemical's
infrastructure

01/01/87

Thallium Compounds: inciudes any umique chemical substance that contains thallium as part of that chemical’s

01/01/87

ntrastructure
Zinc Compounds: Includes any unique chermical substance that contans zinc as part of that chemical's
nfrastructure

01/01/87

[53 FR 4525, Feb. 16, 1988; 53 FR 12748, Apr. 18, 1988, as amended at 53 FR 23112, June 20,
1988, 53 FR 39475, Oct. 8. 1988; 54 FR 12913, Mar. 29, 1989; 54 FR 25851, June 20, 1989; 54
FR 49952, Dec. 1, 1989; 54 FR 51300, Dec. 14, 1989; 55 FR 5222, Feb. 14, 1990: 55 FR 31597,
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